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THE LUGER STORY

The Luger story actually has its beginning with the Henry-Winchester
Rifle! Hiram Stevens Maxim, 1840-1915, one of America's true inven-
tive genluses and one of the greatest arms inventors of all time,
turned his attentlion in the early eighteen eightlies toward the devel-
ment of an automatically operated firearm. Numerous mechanically
operated arms had been developed, such as the hand cranked Gatling
gun but Maxim envisaged using the recoll to operate a gun automatically.
He did so in 1883 by using a standard lever action 1866 VWinchester
Rifle, to the stock of which he attached a movable spring loaded

false butt plate. He connected this plate to the lever trigger guard
through a series of jointed levers. The recoil of the rifle compessed
the spring between tha butt plate and the stock which onened the trig-
ger guard, ejected the empty case and cocked the rifle. The reaction
of the compressed butt nlate spring working through the levers closed
the action, chambered the cartridge and the rifle was ready for the
next pull of the tripgger. Although he used the toggle action Yin-
chester, the basic principle of recoil action was his. This was the
first successful automatic operating firearm.

From Maxims' first use of the toggle action and recoil oneration he
went on to develop the Maxim Machine Gun which proved to be very
successful and was adopted by many countries. This machine gun used
the toggle, knee, or '"Grass Hopper" action principle.

Credit should be given when due so we must at this point mention that
the toggle action of the Henry-Winchester was preceded by the Vol -
canic pistol and rifle. The Volcanic system was invented by Lewis
Jennings, patented December 25, 1849, Patent No. 6973, and first
manufactured by Robbins and Lawrence.

BORCHARDT

Hugo Borchardt a naturalized American citizen developed the toggle

. action system on which the Luger was based. It 1is reasonably certain
that he conceived this action while working in the United States. It

is known that he was working for firearms manufacturers as early as

1874, and at one time worked for Winchester in Hartford, Connecticut.

He was quite a mechanical genius and is credited with the invention

and patenting of a number of items, including the Sharps-Borchardt

Breech Loading Rifle. Thils was his greatest achievement while work-
ing in the U.S.A.

Borchardt returned to Germany in 1893 although he remained an American
citizen. He went to work for Ludwig Loewe, an arms manufacturing firm
in Berlin. He finalized the development of his automatic repeating
pistol, Borchardt Patent, while working for this firm and obtained a
patent in Germany September 9, 1893, Patent MNo. 75,837. He obtained
natents in most other important countries during that same year and

in the United States on November 10, 1896.

Several features of the Borchardt pistol were so ingenious that they
have been used in most automatic pistols manufactured ever since. The
Borchardt carried its cartridpes in a magazine housed in the butt. A
short -recoil operated lock mechanism was used, with the breech block
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locked to the barrel at the time of firing. The breech block was un-
locked by a toggle-joint action which moved freely after the breech
block and barrel had recoilled together a short distance. The toggle-
joint "broke" vertically which released the breech block and allowed
1t to slide towards the rear. The bottle necked cartridge was also
an inovation. The caliber 7.65 Borchardt cartridge with its smoke-
less powder charge was quite powerful dand proved to be the forerunner
of the famous .30 or 7.23 Mauser pistol cartridge. We will cover

the pistol and cartridge in more detall later.

Although the Borchardt pistol was the first automatic pistol to be
truly successful commercially, it was not an outstanding success.

It was efficient but clumsy. Ludwig Loewe (and later D.W.M.) manu-
factured them and a number were sold but it was not received enthus-
fastically by the military of any government, including that of the
U.S:A,

LUGER

At this point Georg Luger comés on stage. He was born at Stelnach,
Austria, in 1848. After serving in the Austrian army for a time

we are told that he worked with the famous Ferdinand Ritter Von
Mannlicher, helping in the design of several Austrian rifles, par--
ticularly the Werndl. In 1891 he was employed by Ludwig Loewe,
Berlin. There 1s some ccntroversy as to just where and when Luger
and Borschardt first met - - it could have occurred in the U.S.A.
for Luger made several trips to the States in conjunction with U. S.
Ordnance tests of various arms in the 1890's. In any event they did
meet and work together at the Ludwig Loewe plant in Berlin. As a
matter of interest, Georg Luger, while working for Loewe brought the
Borchardt pistol to the U.S.A. in late 1894 and attempted to interest
our navy in adopting it. He was not successful.

In 1896 Ludwig Loewe and a well known German ammunitions manufacturer,
Deutsche Metallpatronenfabrik (DMK) of Karlsruhe, merged to form a

new company. The new small arms and ammunitions firm thus established
was called Deutsche Waffen und Munitionsfabriken. This was the fam-
ous DWM of which you will almost always hear when talking with Luger
collectors about their hobby.

Both Borchardt and Luger were top engineers for DWM. Georg, however,
went on his own to design a pistol which had many features strikingly
similar to the Borchardt. His design, however, included numerous and
very important improvements. He filed for a patent on March 17, 1900.
His first patent was granted by England in 1900 and by the U.S.A. in
1904, Patent No. T75,414.

The first Luger and all of those made after it had two excellent fea-
tures that made it a success whereas the Borchardt was not. Georg
Luger eliminated the bulky recoll spring housing of the Borchardt and
slimmed and slanted the grip. These changes made the Luger light-
welght for its power and the slanting grip put the breech action
above and back of the users hand. This gave the pistol excellent
balance without any feel of muzzle heaviness.

Compared to the Borchardt, the Luger had been reduced 25% in welght,
from forty to thirty ounces, the barrel shortened from seven and one
fourth to four and three fourths inches, and the overall length was
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Sorchardt, patented in 1893 by ¥ugo Borchardt-
made by Ludwig & Lowe.

Zorchardt made by DWM. All Borchardts were
chambered for special 7.65 mm cartridge.

Model 1902 Carbine - T7.65 mm.

Snail drum (32 round) magazine and loading tool
for 9 mm WWI Artillery and Carbine Model Lugers.

Model 1902 - prototype of the 9 mm Luger. This

one has special cartridge counting feature. Very,
very rare:- less than ten xnown to exist.

1215 Artillery Model with Persian (Iranian)
marzings. Extremely rare - only one known in U.S.A.




cut to nine inches from the Borchardt's fourteen. The Luger had a
hold-open catch which holds the breech open after the last shot,
ready for cleaning or insertion of a fresh magazine. The magazlne
1tself was improved by providing a slide button which could be de-
pressed with the thumb. This lowered the magazine spring, maklng
it very easy to insert the cartridges.

The Borchardt pistol was of very excellent workmanshlp - - so was
the Luger. DWM maintained these high standards for all of the many
years they produced the Luger. That 1is why, even today, you can
purchase a DWM Luger "sight unseen" and be confident of accuiring a
nistol of high quality.

MANUFACTURERS AND TRADEMARKS
(Trademark found on top of forward toggle 1link.)

Deutsche Waffen und Munitionsfabriken, trademark - a scrolled DWM.
This, the original Luger manufacturer, has already been covered.. In
1922 DWM was taken over by:

Berlin-Karlsrune Industrie Werke or B.K.I.W. a holding company who
distributed Luger nistols for a number of years after 1922. The
trademark was still DWM.

Simson & Co. of Suhl, Germany, trademark - Simson & Co. Suhl. Be
tween 1922 and 1932 this company supplied Lugers to the small neacc
time German army or Reichswehr. The postols were assembled from the
tons of surnlus narts left over from Vorld War One.

Mauser-Werke, of Oberndorf on the Neckar. B.K.I.VW., which controlled
the DWM plant, in 1930 hecame a part of the same holding commany <hat
operated the Mauser factoryv. All of the tooling and machines used

to make the Luger was moved from the Berlin plant of DWM to tre Fauser
nlant at Oberndorf. Mauser then became the major producer of the
Luger pistol. The trademark "DWM" was used for about four years.
Then as Germany began to secretly rearm, all major producers cf war
material vere given secret code names. Mauser used the code nrame
"S/U2" on pistols made for the military and the commercial "Mauser
Banner" trademark was used on those pistols destined for commercial
sales. In 1941 and 1942 Mauser used the code name "byf."

Heinrich Krieghoff Wafenfabrik, Suhl, Germany also produced Lugers
as a licensee. Krieghoff imprinted his pistols with an anchor. The
stern of the anchor was made up of a downward polnting dagger with

an "H'" to the left and a "K" to the right. Beneath the anchor were
vords. "Krieghoff" and "Suhl".

The Royal German Arsenal, Erfurt, Cermany produced many Lugers for
the army during VWorld War One. In place of the DWM trademark is a
crown with "Erfurt" below.

The British Arms Manufacturing Company, A Division of Vickers-
Armstrong- trademark-"Vickers Ltd". This English commany produced
about 10,000 Lugers for the MNetherlands during and after the first
Yorld Yar.

Waffenfabrik Bern of Switzerland, trademark - "Waffenfabrik Bern".
On the 1924 Model Luger “his trademark appears in two lines where
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the DWM would normally appear. A small Swiss Cross surmounts this,
The later model, called "o06/29," which had many small differences
in design was marked with a Swiss Cross on a matted shield. This
mark is on the toggle link where you'd normally see the "DUM".

MODELS

Borchardt Model 1893.

As mentioned earlier this was actually the first successful automatic
pistol. The action was uniaue and coplied by most manufacturers since
its inception. The action was the short-recoll operated lock mechan-
ism. In this tvve the breechblock 1s locked to the barrel at the time
of discharge. the breechblock and barrel recoil rearward together
for a short distance with the breechblock held firmly to the cart
ridge base. At this point as the bullet has left the muzzle and gas
back pressure lessens, the barrel stops and the mechanism opens un-
ward on a toggle or knee action principle. The bolt, still having
some momentum then travels to the rear and compresses a counter re
coil spring. The counter recoil spring then moves the bolt forward

strioping the top cartridge from the clip. The bolt locks itself
to the barrel readv to fire arain.

The barrel 1s 7 1/4%, total length 14", weight 2 1/2 .1bs. the bore
is about .30 calibre, using a sreclal bottlenecked cartridpe called
the 7.65 Borchardt, charged with smokeless powder and an 84.8 grain
bullet. The magazine in the nrip holds 8 cartridges. A grip maga-
zine was original with the Borschardt. The magazines are numbered
along with the pistol. It had a vertically sliding safetv on the
left side just above the grip. The grips were wooden. It had open
sights, the rear sight located atop the recoil spring housing. A
wooden shoulder stock with a removable cheek niece, holster, 3 extra
magazines plus a wooden dummy magazine (housing a ramrod and oiler)
came with the pistol. The pistol complete with the above attachments

etc. sold for $30.00 in the U. S. The Borchardt was very well made
with an excellent finish.

The trouble with the Borschardt was its balance. The grip was at
right angles to the line of sight and placed almost midway between
the front and rear sights. The bulky counter-recoil spring housing
which extended far to the rear was the problem. Being so poorly
balanced it was very lnaccurate as a pistol. It was much better
with the stock attached, however pistol-carbines never have pgained

much acceptance since they are almost always underpowered as comnared
to a regular carbine.

PARABELLUM AUTOMATIC PISTOL
The First Luger - - Model 1900

Georr Luger redesigned the Borchardt, keeping good features and re-
nlacing others with very ingenious ideas of his own. He retained the
basic short-recoll toggle joint actlon but:

1. Inclined the grip at an anprle to the receiver.

2. Housed the leaf type counter - recoil spring in the grip
thereby eliminating the bulky housing.

3. Shortened the barrel to 4 3/4".
s



Positlioned the lanyard ring to the rear top of grip.
Redesigned the trigger and trigger cover.
Moved the ejector to the right side of the receiver.

Eliminated the protruding toggle knob.

O N o U =

Eliminated all screws (except two grip screws) in favor
of pins.

9. Added a hold-open catch -- the breech stays open after
the last shot 1s fired.

10. Added a slide button to the magazine so by depressing 1t
(and the spring) cartridges can be inserted without effort.

11. Repositioned the safety lever and added a grip safety.

12. Designed a new cartridge for the pistol, the 7.65 MM Luger
cartridge. This was a straight (not bottle-necked) nover-
ful cartridge. "

These first Lugers were manufactured by DWM to the very highest stan-
dards of quallty workmanship.

Some people belileve Georg Luger should have no credit- that Hugo
Borchardt 1s really responsible for the design of the pistol. The
facts do not indicate this - Borchardt tried to perfect his own de-
sign and was still trying quilte some time after the Luger was being
produced. Also, Borchardt's name does not appear on any of Luger's
patent papers. He could have protested or taken legal action but
did not -- evidently he had no case. Another courious fact -- vhen
the Borchardt pistol was tested by the Swiss in 1898 they called it
the Borchardt-Luger. This makes one wonder if Georg Luger didn't
actually help Hugo design his pistol!!

Shortly after the Model 1900 was placed on the market it was tested
and adopted by the Swiss government. They purchased 3,000 initiatly.,
which were marked over the chamber with a Swiss Cross on a sunburst
background. Thé famous scrolled DWM was on the forward toggle.

The U. S. Government purchased 1,000 for field trials. The American
Eagle Crest was marked over the chamber and some had a U. S. Ordnance
bomb proof mark. They were not well accepted by the military so were
disposed of in 1906. It is believed that Bannerman, New York, N. Y.
purchased all of them. They were later offered for sale at about
$20.00 each and are a rare, valuable collectors item today.

Abcut 21,000-1900 series Lugers were made. The serial range was from
cne to 21,000. The Swiss military range was from 2,001 to 5,000 and
the balance was divided between German and Swiss Commercial Lugers
ard the 1,000 purchased for the U. S. Trials.

Nuring the ensuing years various models of the Luger were tested and/
or adopted by Bulgaria, Sweden, Austria, Canada, Dutch, Switzerland,
Persia, U. S., Brazll, Russia, Spain, Norway, Luxemburg, Chile and
Portugal. Germany of course (Navy) also adopted the Luger as their
standard sidearm.
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The “Parabellum” Automatic Pistol
"New MODEL™ (WITH COlL RECOIL SPRING)

Horizontal section.

Cross section before
the trigger.

Longitudinal axal section,
ready for firing.

The immoveable stock, seen from above,

Partial seciion, the moveable parts of the breech-black removed.

cannon and breech-block pulled down,
recoil spring compressed.




Sear Bar Spring

. Sear Bar Plunger Pin

. Sear Bar Plunger

. Sear Bar Plunger Spring
. Frame

' mm Loieh sori

. (o pring
. Locking Bolt

. Trigger Lever

. Trigger Lever Pin

. Locking Bolt Spring

. Trigger

. Trigger Spring

. Magazine Catch

. Magazine Catch Spring
. Safety Lever

. Safety Lever Pin

. Grip Safety

. Grip Safety Spring

. Grip Screws (2)

. Recoil Spring

. Breechblock

. Extractor

. Breechblock Connecting Pin

PISTOL

31. Firing Pin

32. Firing Pin Spring

33. Firing Pin Spring Retainer

34. Forward Toggle Link

35. Rear Toggle Link

36. Forward & Rear Toggle
Link Pin

37. Toggle Lock

38. Toggle Lock Spring

39. Toggle Lock Pin

40, Coupling Link

41. Coupling Link Pin

42. Trigger Plate

Grips and magazine assembly

are not shown.

Q5 RIA L l.: I5{00}4
JARKS

1st Proof

6 2nd Proof
U and Examination

é } Smokelesa

N Powder
Nitro ) Froof

&
R

Proof for
Repairs

Disassembly—Remove magazine
assembly and check action to be
sure the pistol is unloaded. Press
muzzle against a solid surface to
push receiver back on frame and
tumn locking bolt (14) down to
release trigger plate (42). Trig-
ger (18) with spring (19) may be
lifted out of frame (11). Pull re-
caiver assembly (1) forward off
frame. Push rear toggle/ receiver
connecting pin (5). Toggle links
(34,35) and breechblock assem-
bly (28) can be drawn out of
receiver to rear. Further disas-
sembly is easily accomplished,
where necessary, by remaoving
the various pivot or connecting
pins (30, 36). Reassemble in re-
verse order. When replacing re-
ceiver with breechblock and tog-
gle links in frame, be sure that
end of coupling link (40) engages
ears at top of recoll spring (27).




MODEL 1902

This was the first Luger designed for use of the now long famous

9 MM Luger cartridge. As compared to the Model 1900 it had the
following changes:

1. Barrel was somewhat 'fat' and shortened to 4".

2. The forward portion of the receiver and frame were shorten-
ed slightly - about 5/64".

3. Six groove rifling was used instead of four.
Not many of this model were made (about 1,000) and are auite scarce.

They are important as a collectors item because they were the first

to use the 9MM Luger cartridge. It is believed that the serial ranrge
was from 22,401 to 23,400.

MODEL 1904 (Navv)

This was the model adopted by ‘the Imperlal German Navy and called
“Marine Modell 1904". It was the first to be adopted by the German
government. It differs from the Model 1900 as follows:

l. A six inch barrel, caliber 9 MM
2. Two position adjustable rear sight on rear of toggle link.

3. Vhen a cartridge is in the chamber and the extractor is ex-
nanded, the word "Geladen" (Loaded) 1s visible on the left
side of the extractor.

4, The German word "Gesichert" (Safe) was indented beneath the
thumb safety lever. '

5. The toggles were not cut back but were knurled only part
way around.

6. A lug was included on the back strap for the use of a
shoulder stock.

This early Navy model had only the DWM trademark and is aquite rare.
Later Navy Lugers had German Navy proof marks.

THE CARBINE

The 1900 Model Luger was also manufactured in a long-barreled carbin=
model. The barrel recoiled within a contoured wooden forestock. A
detachable shoulder stock came with each carbine. The complete gun
was offered in a nice case which had compartments for tools and car-
tridges. Please note that the shoulder stock or carbine models pro-
duced during Vorld War I were entirely different from this snecial
high auality carbine which was introduced in 1904.

This carbine had a standard barrel 11 3/4" long which was considerably
thicker than the pistol barrel. It had a long "ramp" front sight and
the adjustable (100-300 meters) rear sipght was placed on the barrel
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just in front of the chamber. A special 7.65 cartridge with added
power was used. A few may have been made for use with 9 '™ car-
tridges.

It is reported that the serial range was from 23,401 to 25,000 so it
can be assumed that about 1600 were made. These were produced durines
peacetime and were renorted to he used in hunting as "Brush" guns.

MEW vs OLD MODEL

Up to this noint we have discussed the so called "O1ld ilodel" Luger.
The first (1900) model and all made prior to 1906 had a flat lamina-
ted counter-recoll snring, flat extractor and cut-back toggles. These
three orincipal features are characteristic of the "Cld Model". The
only exception 1s the 1904 model (Navy) which was really a transition
piece. It had the "01d Model" flat spring but a 1906 tvne extractor.
The toggles differed from elther model.

1906 MODELS

A new coil recoil spring, a definite improvement, was desipgned. The
flat extractor was replaced by a design which also served as 23
"I,oaded" indicator. When a cartridge is fed into the chamber, the
extractor grasps the shell and raises thereby exvosing the word
"Geladen™, German for "Loaded", on the left side. The toggles wers
not cut back and were knurled all the way around. This made them
easier to prasp and hold when manually chambering the first cartridre.

All 1906 models were made bv DUM,

MODFL DESIGNATIONS - 1900-06, 1902--06 ETC.

In the vear 1906 a number of models were introduced, all having the
ey i"odel" features described above. But some were redesigfned after

the 1900 model and some were updated versions of the 1902 model. The
1904 model was alsc redesigned in 1906. To differentiate, it becamc

the practice to use the basic model in conjunction with 1906 hence
1900-06, 1902-06 etc.

THE 1900--06

Same graceful, slim 4 3/4" barrel, 7.65 MM, as the 1900, grip safetv
and DM trademark on toggle. German commercial pistols were made

in this model - no marking over chamber. The Swiss purchased over
10,000 - serial ranpe 5001-15,300 plus. Swiss Cross on 2 matted sur-
turst over chamber. A number were also marked with a matted shield
instead cf sunburst, supposedly for the nolice instead of militarv
nersonnel.

“he American Eaple was produced in this model. The only difference
was the American Eaple Crest over the chamber and "loaded" on the
extractor. They should be found in the 25,000 to 37,000 series ac-
cording to report.

The Portuguese 1900.06 had the Royal Portupguese Coat of Arms over
the chamber -- - a crown with '"M" and “"2" (King Manuel II) below,
Fortuguese proof marks on the pistol are a triangle inslde of a
circle. The extractor reads '"Carregada" instead of "Celaden".
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